
 
REGULAR PIQUA CITY COMMISSION MEETING 

TUESDAY, JUNE 19, 2012 
7:30 P.M. – COMMISSION CHAMBER – 2nd FLOOR 

201 WEST WATER STREET 
PIQUA, OHIO   45356 

 
 

 CALL TO ORDER 
 
 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 ROLL CALL  
 
 

REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING 
 
     
 CONSENT AGENDA 

 
1. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  

Approval of the minutes from the June 5, 2012 Regular Piqua City Commission  
 
 NEW BUSINESS 
 

2 RES. NO. R-97-12  (Public Hearing) 
A Resolution accepting for statutory purposes a budget for the calendar year 2013 
 

3 RES. NO. R-98-12 
A Resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into a lease agreement to permit the 
usage of a portion of Fountain Park, Hardman Field and Hance Pavilion to the Piqua  
Fourth of July Association 

 
 4.   RES. NO. R-99-12 

A Resolution submitting to the electors of the City of Piqua, Ohio, a proposed amendment 
to Codified Ordinance Sections 36.03, 36.04 and 36.13 providing an increase of 0.25 of 
1% Municipal Income Tax Levy beginning on January 1, 2013 

 
OTHER 
Monthly Reports – April 2012 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
(This is an opportunity for citizens to address the City Commission regarding issues or to provide  
information.  Comments are requested to be limited to five (5) minutes and specific questions  
should be addressed to the City Manager’s office.) 
 
CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
a. Department Update – Cynthia Holtzapple, Finance Department 

 
COMMISSIONERS COMMENT 

 
ADJOURNMENT 



PUBLIC HEARING 
RESOLUTION NO. R-97-12  

 
 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING FOR STATUTORY 
PURPOSES A BUDGET FOR THE CALENDAR YEAR 
2013 

 
 

WHEREAS, Section 5705.28 of the Revised Code requires that this 
Commission adopt a tax budget for the next succeeding fiscal year; and 
 
 WHEREAS, said tax budget, identified as the “2013 County Tax Budget” and 
incorporated by reference herein, has been presented to this Commission; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of 
Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, 
that: 
 

SEC. 1: The 2013 County Tax Budget for the City of Piqua, Ohio is 
hereby accepted as current for all statutory purposes; 

  
SEC. 2: Pursuant to Charter Section 49, receipt of the 2013 draft 

appropriation ordinance is hereby acknowledged; 
 

 SEC. 3: The Clerk of this Commission is hereby authorized and directed 
to certify a true copy of this Resolution and of the 2013 County Tax Budget to the 
Miami County Budget Commission; 

 
 SEC. 4: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
 
 

      ____________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
   
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



















 

Item # 2
 

Commission Agenda             
Staff Report 
 
 
 
 

 
MEETING DATE 

 

 
June 19, 2012 

 
REPORT TITLE 

(Should match resolution/ordinance 
title) 

 

 
A Resolution Accepting for Statutory Purposes a Budget for the Calendar Year 
2013.    

 
SUBMITTED BY 

Name & Title: Cynthia A. Holtzapple, Asst. City Manager & Finance Director 
Department: Finance 

 
AGENDA CLASSIFICATION 

 

 
Consent 

 
Ordinance 

 
Resolution 

 
Regular 

 
ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION 

 
 
 

 
1st Reading 

 
2nd Reading 

 
3rd Reading 

 
 

 
Ordinance #:       

 
Resolution #: R-97-12 

 
APPROVALS/REVIEWS 

City Manager Asst. City Manager/Finance 
Asst. City Manager/Development Law Director 
Department Director Other:       

 
BACKGROUND 

(Includes description, background, 
and justification) 

 

 
We are required to file this approved Resolution and County Tax Budget with 
our Miami County Budget Commission on or before July 20, 2012.  We must 
first have this Resolution approved by our City Commission with advertising 
and public hearing being properly conducted. 

 
BUDGETING AND 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
(Includes project costs and funding 

sources) 

Budgeted $:        
Expenditure $:        
Source of Funds: Annual Budget 
Narrative:  See attached letter. 

 
OPTIONS 

(Include Deny /Approval Option) 
 
 

1. Approve Resolution as proposed. 
2. Approve Resolution with changes being made to the amounts proposed. 
3. Reject Resolution and advise staff of how to proceed. 
4.       

 
PROJECT TIMELINE 

 

 
Need to file approved Resolution with Miami County by July 20, 2012. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 
 

 
Approve Resolution as proposed. 

ATTACHMENTS  1. Tax Budget dated June 14, 2012. 
2. Draft Ordinance to make Appropriations for The City of Piqua for the 
calendar year 2013. 
 

 







                                       RESOLUTION NO.  R-98-12 
 

 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER 
                         TO ENTER INTO A LEASE AGREEMENT TO PERMIT  

             THE USAGE OF A PORTION OF FOUNTAIN PARK,  
                         HARDMAN FIELD AND HANCE PAVILION TO THE  

             PIQUA FOURTH OF JULY ASSOCIATION 
 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, Miami County, 
Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1: The City Manager is hereby authorized to permit the Piqua 
Fourth of July Association on July 4, 2012 to use Hance Pavilion, Hardman Field, the 
Fountain Park volleyball courts and that part of Fountain Park between (and 
including) the hardball diamond and the dining hall, upon the condition that the Piqua 
Fourth of July Association obtains liability insurance satisfactory to the City Manager 
at a minimum coverage of $1,000,000 and complies with the terms of the attached 
Lease.  The rental fee for this lease shall be $1.00 and other valuable consideration. 

 
 SEC. 2: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
 
      ____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



 
 

LEASE AGREEMENT 
 
THIS LEASE AGREEMENT is made and entered into this   day of       2012, by 
and between the City of Piqua and the Piqua Fourth Of July Association as follows: 
 
Section 1:  For one dollar and other valuable consideration, the City leases to the Association 
the below-listed public park facilities for the day of July 4, 2012 

Hance Pavilion 
Hardman Field 
That portion of Fountain Park between (and including) the 
baseball diamond and the dining hall 

 
Section 2:  The Association shall occupy and use the leased premises solely for the purposes 
of the annual Independence Day celebration and related activities. 
 
Section 3:  The Association shall obtain liability insurance satisfactory to the City Manager at 
a minimum coverage of $1,000,000 per event or $3,000,000 aggregate for bodily injury or 
property damage or for liability for acts of the Association or its agents, employees, licensees, 
or invitees, including operations, products and contemplated operations.  Proof of coverage 
shall be provided to the City of Piqua.   

 
The association will include the following as additional insureds:  The City of Piqua, Ohio, its 
elected and appointed officials, all employees, agents, volunteers, all boards, commissions 
and/or authorities and board members including employees, agents and volunteers thereof.  
Coverage shall be primary to the Additional Insureds and not contributing with any other 
insurance or similar protection available to the Additional Insureds whether other available 
coverage be primary, contributing, or excess. 
 
The City of Piqua shall be issued a certificate of insurance in the amount not less than stated 
above.  The certificate of insurance shall specify that the City of Piqua, its elected of and 
appointed officials, all employees, agents, volunteers, all boards, commissions and/or 
authorities and board members including employees, agents and volunteers thereof are added 
by endorsement as additional insureds. 
 
All vendors at the celebration shall provide proof of liability coverage in the same amount and 
include the City of Piqua as an additional insured.  The Association shall not permit any 
vendor without the proper liability insurance coverage. 
 
Section 4:  The Association shall indemnify, hold harmless and defend the City of Piqua, Ohio, 
its officers, employees, agents and volunteers against any and all liability, loss, costs, 
damages, expenses, claims or actions, including attorney’s fees which the City of Piqua, Ohio, 
its officers, employees, agents and volunteers may hereafter sustain, incur or be required to 
pay, arising out of or by any act or omission of the Association, the City of Piqua, Ohio, their 



officers, employees, agents and volunteers, in the execution, performance or failure to 
adequately perform Association’s or City of Piqua’s obligations pursuant to this contract. 

Section 5:  The Association, its assigns, heirs, successors, employees and any and all 
subcontractors are independent contractors and are not agents and/or employees of the City of 
Piqua.   
 
Section 6:  This agreement shall not be assignable.  
 
Section 7.  The Association and all vendors shall comply with all inspections and obtain any 
permits required prior to operation, including any full time or on-site fire personnel for the 
display of fireworks, at the Association’s expense. 
 
Section 8.  The City shall review and contract made with a vendor for fireworks.  No contract 
with any vendor shall place any liability upon the City. 
 
Section 9.  The Association shall be responsible for basic clean-up of the facilities after the 
conclusion of the festival. 
 
Executed as of the above-referenced date by: 
 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Gary A. Huff, City Manager                            President, Piqua Fourth of July Assn. 
City of Piqua                                                                                   



RESOLUTION NO.  R-99-12  
 

A RESOLUTION SUBMITTING TO THE ELECTORS OF 
THE CITY OF PIQUA, OHIO, A PROPOSED 
AMENDMENT TO CODIFIED ORDINANCE SECTIONS 
36.03, 36.04 and 36.13 PROVIDING AN INCREASE OF 
0.25 OF 1% MUNICIPAL INCOME TAX LEVY 
BEGINNING ON JANUARY 1, 2013 

 
WHEREAS, the amount of income taxes which may be raised by Ordinance No. 

33-66 will be insufficient to provide adequate funds for capital and operating needs of the 
police and fire departments and public safety related services; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the proposed tax ordinance is attached hereto and incorporated by 
reference as Exhibit “A”; 
 
  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of 
Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1: There shall be submitted to the electors of the City of Piqua, 
Miami County, Ohio, at a regular election, which is hereby called, in and for said City on 
the 6th day of November 2012, the following proposition: 

 
Shall Sections 36.03, 36.04 and 36.13 of the City of Piqua 
Codified Ordinances be amended to increase the City 
income tax from 1.75% to 2.00% beginning January 1, 
2013 with the additional 0.25% levy to be used solely for 
the capital and operating needs of police, fire and public 
safety related services? 

 
For the Income Tax 
Against the Income Tax 

 
SEC. 2: The Clerk of this Commission is hereby directed to certify a copy 

of this Resolution and attached ordinance to the Board of Elections of Miami County, 
Ohio, prior to the seventy-fifth day before the election upon which it will be propositioned 
as required by law; 

 
 SEC. 3: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after the 
earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 

     ____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



 

Item # 4
 

Commission Agenda             
Staff Report 
 
 
 
 

 
MEETING DATE 

 

 
June 19, 2012 

 
REPORT TITLE 

(Should match resolution/ordinance 
title) 

 

 
A Resolution Submitting to the Electors a Proposed Amendment to Codified 
Ordinance Sections 36.03, 36.04 and 36.13 Providing an Increase of 0.25 of 1% 
Municipal Income Tax Levy.    

 
SUBMITTED BY 

Name & Title: Cynthia A. Holtzapple, Asst. City Manager & Finance Director 
Department: Finance 

 
AGENDA CLASSIFICATION 

 

 
Consent 

 
Ordinance 

 
Resolution 

 
Regular 

 
ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION 

 
 
 

 
1st Reading 

 
2nd Reading 

 
3rd Reading 

 
 

 
Ordinance #:       

 
Resolution #: R-99-12 

 
APPROVALS/REVIEWS 

City Manager Asst. City Manager/Finance 
Asst. City Manager/Development Law Director 
Department Director Other:       

 
BACKGROUND 

(Includes description, background, 
and justification) 

 

 
Given the current structural budget issues of the General Fund and the recent 
decline of local government funding and elimination of the inheritance tax, 
alternative revenue is needed to help maintain current safety services.  We 
propose submitting to the electors a 0.25 of 1% municipal income tax levy 
beginning on January 1, 2013 to help address this issue.    We must first have 
this Resolution approved by our City Commission and filed with the Board of 
Elections. 

 
BUDGETING AND 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
(Includes project costs and funding 

sources) 

Budgeted $:        
Expenditure $:        
Source of Funds: Annual Budget 
Narrative:   

 
OPTIONS 

(Include Deny /Approval Option) 
 

1. Approve Resolution as proposed. 
2. Approve Resolution with changes being made. 
3. Reject Resolution and consider other options of increasing revenues. 

 
PROJECT TIMELINE 

 

 
Submit to the Electors the proposed amendment to be voted on at a regular 
election on the 6th day of November 2012.  An approved resolution must be 
filed in early August with the Board of Elections. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 

 
Approve Resolution as proposed. 

ATTACHMENTS   

 



EXHIBIT “A” 
 

§ 36.03 IMPOSITION OF TAX 
 

(A)  Generally. Subject to the provisions of § 36.17, an annual tax for the purposes specified 
in § 36.01 shall be imposed at the rate of 1.75% 2.00% per annum.  The first 1% of the tax 
shall be levied until repealed by the City Commission; the next 0.5% until repealed by the 
electorate; and the remaining next 0.25% from January 1, 1991 through December 31, 2020; 
and the remaining 0.25% of the tax shall be levied until repealed by the electorate upon: 

   
(1) All qualifying wages, commissions, other compensation and other income earned 

or received during the effective period of this chapter by residents of the city. 
 

(2) All salaries wages, commissions, other compensation earned and other income 
earned or received during the effective period of this Chapter by nonresidents for work done 
or services performed or rendered in the city. 

 
(3) (a)  The portion attributable to the city of the net profits earned or received 

during the effective period of this charter, of all resident unincorporated businesses, 
professions or other entities, derived from sales made, work done, services performed or 
rendered and business or other activities conducted in the city. 

 
(b)    The portion of the distributive share of net profits earned or received during the 

effective period of this charter of a resident partner or owner of a resident unincorporated 
business entity not attributable to the city and not levied against such unincorporated 
business entity.  Provided, however, that the liability of an individual partner or owner, 
taxable hereunder on income attributable to another taxing municipality, shall be subject to 
the Relief and Reciprocity Provisions of § 36.14. 

 
(4) (a)  The portion attributable to the city of net profits earned or received during 

the effective period of this charter of all non-resident unincorporated businesses, professions 
or other entities, derived from sales made, work done or services performed or rendered and 
business or other activities conducted in the city, whether or not such unincorporated 
business entity has an office or place of business in the city. 

 
(b)    The portion of the distributive share of net profits earned or received during the 

effective period of this charter of a resident partner or owner of a nonresident unincorporated 
business entity not attributable to the city and not levied against such unincorporated 
business entity.  Provided, however, that the liability of an individual partner or owner 
taxable hereunder on income attributable to another taxing municipality shall be subject to 
the Relief and Reciprocity provisions of § 36.14. 

 
(5) The portion attributable to the city of net profits earned or received during the 

effective period of this charter of all corporations derived from sales made, work done, 
services performed or rendered and business or other activities conducted in the city, whether 
or not such corporations have an office or place of business in the city. 

 
(6)   All income received as gambling winnings as reported on IRS Form W-2G, Form 

5754 and or any other form required by the Internal Revenue Service that reports winnings 



from gambling, prizes and lottery winnings.  Gambling losses are not deductible unless 
losses are supported by an independent verifiable statement. 

 
(B)   Portion attributable.  The portion of the net profits attributable to the City of Piqua of a 
taxpayer conducting a business, profession or other activity, both within and without the 
boundaries of the City of Piqua, shall be determined as provided in Section 718.02 of the 
Revised Code of Ohio and in accordance with the Rules and Regulations. 

 
 

(C)   Operating losses. 
 

(A) The Municipality does not allow a net operating loss carryback or carry forward. 
 

(B)   (a)   Losses from federal schedules and other sources reported for federal income 
tax purposes cannot be used to offset qualifying wages, commissions, other compensation 
and other taxable income earned or received by residents or nonresidents of the municipality. 

 
(b)      If an individual is engaged in two or more taxable business activities to be 

included in the same return, the net loss of one unincorporated business activity may be used 
to offset the profits of another (except any portion of a loss or profit separately reportable for 
municipal tax purposes to another taxing entity) for purposes of arriving at overall net profits 
or net operating loss. 

 
(D)    Consolidated Returns 

 
(1) Any affiliated group, which files a consolidated return for federal income tax 

purposes pursuant to Section 1501 of the Internal Revenue Code, may file a consolidated 
return with the city.  However, once the affiliated group has elected to file a consolidated 
return or a separate return with the city, the affiliated group may not change its method of 
filing in any subsequent tax year without written approval from the city. 

 
(2) In the case of a corporation that carried on transactions with its stockholders or 

with other corporations related by stock ownership, interlocking directorates or some other 
method, or in case any person operates a division, branch, factory, office, laboratory or 
activity within the city, constituting a portion only of its total business, the Administrator 
shall require such additional information as he or she may deem necessary to ascertain 
whether net profits are properly allocated to the city.  If the Administrator finds net profits 
are not properly allocated to the city by reason of transactions with stockholders or with other 
corporations related by stock ownership, interlocking directorates, or transactions with such 
division, branch, factory, office, laboratory or activity or by some other method, the 
Administrator shall make such allocations as the Administrator deems appropriate to produce 
a fair and proper allocation of net profits to the city. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



§ 36.04 EFFECTIVE PERIOD. 
 

(A)     The first 1% of said tax shall be levied, collected and paid with respect to the income, 
qualifying wages, commissions and other compensation, and with respect to net profits of 
businesses, professions or other activities earned from January 1, 1977, and until repealed by 
the City Commission. 

 
(B)     The next 0.5% of said tax shall be levied, collected and paid with respect to the 
income, qualifying wages, commissions and other compensation, and with respect to the net 
profits of businesses, professions or other activities earned from January 1, 1984 and until 
repealed by the electorate. 

 
(C)     The remaining next 0.25% of said tax shall be levied, collected and paid with respect 
to the income, qualifying wages, commissions and other compensation, and with respect to 
the net profits of businesses, professions or other activities earned from January 1, 1991 
through December 31, 2020. 

 
(D)     The remaining 0.25% of said tax shall be levied, collected and paid with respect to the 
income, qualifying wages, commissions and other compensation, and with respect to the net 
profits of businesses, professions or other activities earned from January 1, 2013 and until 
repealed by the electorate. 

 
§ 36.13 USE OF FUNDS. 

 
(A)     The total income tax funds collected under the provisions of this ordinance shall be 
held by the Director of Finance in a separate fund known as the “INCOME TAX FUND” and 
shall be deposited in a separate account, or accounts, in such bank or banks, as the Director in 
his or her sole discretion may decide. 

 
(B)     Relating to the first 1%, not less than 28% shall be used for the construction, operation 
and maintenance of streets, including the draining thereof.  Not less than 21% shall be used 
for permanent improvements and operation of the Safety Department.  Not less than 7% shall 
be used for permanent improvements and operation of City parks.  Not more than 44% shall 
be used for General Fund purposes, other than those listed above, and for the purpose of 
paying the cost of collecting the tax levied by this ordinance and the cost of administering 
and enforcing the provisions thereof. 

 
(C)      The funds collected under the provisions of this ordinance relating to the next 0.5% 
levy in excess of 1% shall be used entirely for capital and operating needs of police, fire and 
public safety-related services. 

 
(D)      The funds collected under the provisions of this ordinance relating to the remaining 
next 0.25% levy shall be used entirely for the construction, reconstruction and resurfacing of 
streets and alleys, including the installation, maintenance and reconstruction of storm 
drainage lines, manholes and catch basins. 

 
(E)      The funds collected under the provisions of this ordinance relating to the remaining 
0.25% levy shall be used entirely for capital and operating needs of police, fire and public 
safety-related services. 


